
Board of Health

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

Council Chambers, 6th Floor7:00 AMWednesday, February 14, 2024

1. Call meeting to order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll call of membership

4. Approval of minutes from previous meeting

1. 24-0108 December 2023 Board of Health Meeting Minutes

12.13.23BoardOfHealthMeetingMinutes.pdfAttachments:

5. Public Hearing/Appearances

6. Action Items

1. 24-0114 EHR Vendor Recommendation

2024.02_EHRVendorRecommendation.pdfAttachments:

2. 24-0115 BOTS Grant Acceptance Recommendation 

2024.02_BOTSMemo_a.pdfAttachments:

7. Information Items

1. 24-0116 Mental Health Information Series: Beth Clay, Executive Director of N.E.W. 

Mental Health Connections

2. 24-0111 2023 Q4 Report

Q4 2023 Quarterly Report_0.pdfAttachments:

3. 24-0113 Respiratory Virus Surveillance and Waste Water Reporting

Feb2024_RespiratoryVirusSurveillanceAndWasteWaterReport.pdfAttachments:

4. 24-0110 Dangerous Animal Declarations

01.15.24_DangerousAnimalDeclaration_Tony.pdfAttachments:

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 2/8/2024

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23809
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b3c4a54d-c83f-4eff-84ed-332b5490cbab.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23815
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0afc7e0c-8476-4c3c-89ba-0978a395a2dc.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23816
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2115d355-6c98-4b83-8f61-7028b6db1043.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23817
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23812
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=219a0754-1b31-4aa7-a2ec-ccd787129412.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23814
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8fafbc86-84a9-4fdc-9cda-8bb2558f6fa9.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23811
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bc28daf0-02eb-4bdf-bff4-f78b559f9ffe.pdf


February 14, 2024Board of Health Meeting Agenda - Final

5. 24-0109 New Noise Variances

2024_NewApprovedNoiseVariances_FebBoH.pdfAttachments:

6. 24-0112 Health Department Newsletters

January 2024 Newsletter_0.pdf

February 2024 Newsletter_0.pdf

Attachments:

8. Adjournment

Notice is hereby given that a quorum of the Common Council may be present during this 

meeting, although no Council action will be taken.

Reasonable Accommodations for Persons with Disabilities will be made upon Request 

and if Feasible.

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 2/8/2024

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23810
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=dd8b17f3-c10b-41f9-a6ee-764d527d4197.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23813
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5efd81fb-504e-428b-adc9-89fde1f1a7e1.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=004fe2c6-5ce9-4324-b5f4-349ee6c20dc4.pdf


100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

Board of Health

7:00 AM Council Chambers, 6th FloorWednesday, December 13, 2023

Call meeting to order1.

Chair Spears called the meeting to order at 7:02am.

Pledge of Allegiance2.

Mayor Woodford led the membership in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance to the flag of 

the United States of America.

Roll call of membership3.

Rollcall

Spears, Fuchs, Werth, Alderperson Meltzer, Alderperson Jones and Mayor 

Woodford

Present: 6 - 

Vogel and KaneExcused: 2 - 

Approval of minutes from previous meeting4.

Mayor Woodford moved, seconded by Alderperson Meltzer, that the Minutes from the 

previous meeting be approved. Motion carried by the following vote:

approved

Aye: Spears, Fuchs, Werth, Alderperson Meltzer, Alderperson Jones and Mayor 

Woodford

6 - 

Excused: Vogel and Kane2 - 

23-1456 Board of Health Minute Minutes, Nov. 8, 2023

11.8.23BoardOfHealthMeetingMinutes.pdfAttachments:

Public Hearing/Appearances5.

None.

Action Items6.

23-1461 Community Resource Navigator Table of Organization Request

Page 1City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23630
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c40b52ef-b300-4499-a6d5-d6fe1614631a.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23635


December 13, 2023Board of Health Meeting Minutes - Final

2023CommunityResourceNavigator.pdf

Dec BoH TO Draft.pdf

Community Resource Navigator Job Description.pdf

Attachments:

Spears moved, seconded by Alderperson Jones, that the Community Resource 

Navigator Table of Organization Request be recommended for approval. 

Speaker: Health Officer, Charles Sepers and Community Health Supervisor, Breanna 

Mekuly.

recommended for approval

Aye: Spears, Fuchs, Werth, Alderperson Meltzer, Alderperson Jones and Mayor 

Woodford

6 - 

Excused: Vogel and Kane2 - 

Information Items7.

23-1457 New Noise Variances

DecBoHNewApprovedNoiseVariances.pdfAttachments:

Speaker: Health Officer, Charles Sepers.

23-1458 Dangerous Animal Declaration

11.13.23_DangerousAnimalDeclaration_DogNamedBear.pdfAttachments:

Speaker: Health Officer, Charles Sepers.

23-1459 Respiratory Virus Reporting

Appleton Waster Water Report 11.27.23.pdf

Respiratory Virus Surveillance Report 11.25.23.pdf

Attachments:

Speaker: Health Officer, Charles Sepers.

23-1460 December Newsletter

December_2023_Newsletter_0.pdfAttachments:

Speaker: Health Officer, Charles Sepers.

Adjournment8.

Alderperson Jones moved, seconded by Alderperson Meltzer, that the meeting be 

adjourned at 7:25am. Motion carried by the following vote:

adjourned

Aye: Spears, Fuchs, Werth, Alderperson Meltzer, Alderperson Jones and Mayor 

Woodford

6 - 

Page 2City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5122c7c1-1165-4105-baad-4e9b7f296bde.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4ec82edb-6f0e-40ca-a09e-edb32968c45b.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=42c34f66-7027-4c6e-ab8a-6470cb0137c2.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23631
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=82578780-04db-4e04-9d00-f11f2a7d46bf.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23632
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6748bf6b-ab4f-4354-8507-e1b134c7e2f1.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23633
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=039a8187-f6e2-4510-b25f-f566038ea8b0.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8d8b1a2a-0593-4cef-8701-4df937484114.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23634
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f65e44c6-f441-4a7c-9603-194e181c617d.pdf


December 13, 2023Board of Health Meeting Minutes - Final

Excused: Vogel and Kane2 - 

Page 3City of Appleton



   
 

February 2, 2024 

To: City of Appleton Board of Health 
City of Appleton Finance Committee 

From: Charles E. Sepers, Jr., Ph.D., M.P.H., Health Officer/Director 

Subject:  Recommendation for Electronic Health Record System (EHR) Vendor – CHAMP Software 

I am writing to recommend Champ Software as our preferred vendor for implementing an Electronic Health Record (EHR) system for 

the City of Appleton Health Department. This recommendation is based on a thorough evaluation of various potential vendors, 

considering factors such as functionality, user-friendliness, cost-effectiveness, and support services. 

Champ Software offers a robust EHR system that meets our diverse requirements. Their system facilitates efficient patient record 

management, appointment scheduling, billing, and reporting. The software is designed with a user-friendly interface, ensuring ease 

of use for our public health nurses, which will minimize the learning curve and enhance overall productivity. Champ Software 

provides a competitively priced solution. Additionally, they a proven track record of providing excellent customer support and 

training. The system fully complies with HIPAA and other relevant health information privacy regulations, ensuring the security and 

confidentiality of patient data. Other public health departments using Champ Software have reported high satisfaction levels, citing 

improvements in efficiency, data accuracy, and patient care. 

Moving from the current paper charting system to an EHR is more efficient, will decrease the need for storage, and is 

environmentally friendly. In addition, the scheduling, reporting, and time tracking functions, currently managed through outdated 

software (I-Series), scheduled to be decommissioned within the next 12 months. These functions are integrated into the proposed 

EHR system, ensuring vital continuity of service within the public health nursing division.  

Given these factors, I believe that Champ Software is the right choice for the City of Appleton Health Department. Implementing 

their EHR system will significantly enhance our public health nursing efficiency, accuracy, overall quality, and customer service. 

This request will not have an impact on the current Health Department general funds budget, as estimated amounts for this EHR 

software were included in the 2024 Health Department Budget, Special Revenue Funds, which was approved by the Appleton 

Common Council.  I request that the committees consider this recommendation and approve the selection of Champ Software as 

our EHR system vendor. I am available to provide further details or answer any questions regarding this recommendation. 

Champ Software Quote:  
One time training and implementation: $5,500  
Annual subscription: $12,371 
 

Respectfully submitted by, 

 

Charles E. Sepers, Jr., Ph.D., M.P.H. 

Health Officer/Director 

Appleton Health Department 



PO Box 2246, North Mankato, MN 56002 | 507-388-4141 (tel) | www.champsoftware.com  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposal Prepared for 

City of Appleton  
Health Department 

Attention: 

Sonja Jensen, Health Officer 

September 15, 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  
David Smith  
Senior Account Executive 
100 Warren St., Suite 305  
Mankato, MN 56001  
507- 399- 0423 Direct Line 
507-388-4141 Office 
david.smith@champsoftware.com 



 
 

 PO Box 2246, North Mankato, MN 56002 | 507-388-4141 (tel) | www.champsoftware.com 

September 15,, 2023 

Champ Software, Inc. supports the City of Appleton Health Department's mission. As a method of 
supporting services and efforts to help improve the well-being of individuals, families and communities, 
Champ Software is pleased to offer the following proposal for Nightingale Notes training and site 
licenses. 

 
--- SILVER Package with 9 Named Users --- 

One-Time Training and Implementation 
$5,500.00 - This is a 1-Time Charge 

Annual Subscription 
$12,371 

PREPAID OPTIONS 
 Total one year prepaid – 17,871 (Implementation/Training & 1st Year Subscription) 
 Total two years prepaid – 30,613 
 Total three years prepaid – 43,737 

--- GOLD Package with 9 Named Users -- 

One-Time Training and Implementation 
$6,900.00 This is a 1-Time Charge 
Annual Subscription 
$14,973 
 
PREPAID OPTIONS 

 Total one year prepaid – 21,873 (Implementation/Training & 1st Year Subscription) 
 Total two years prepaid - 37,145 
 Total three years prepaid – 52,723 

 



 
 

 PO Box 2246, North Mankato, MN 56002 | 507-388-4141 (tel) | www.champsoftware.com 

 























A PatagoniaHealth 
http://www.patagoniahealth.com SALES AGREEMENT 

Item / Description Quantity One-Time Monthly 

Upfront Subscription 

Charge Fee 

Immunization Barcode scanning software. Included Included 

Electronic Patient Consent forms with editor tool included. 5 Included Included 

Communicator App Included Included 

Patient ID Scanning Feature - Directly scan patient ID or insurance 2 Included Included 
information into patient demographics (Scanner purchased by the 
customer). 

Time & Effort Tracking App. Included Included 

# of Onsite Training Days (Other) (Note: Days quoted are per person 4 Included NA 

days). 

Training (Videos): Unlimited, on-demand, access by each user to built Included NA 

in of training videos. 

Total Payments 

1. Monthly On-going subscription fee Payments: First 2 months are free. Monthly payments start $ 959.40 
1st day of 3rd month from the contract sign date. This includes a time limited discount for signing
an agreement by an assigned date.

2. Initial Start Up Payment payable upon contract signing: Includes initial Set up ($13,035.00) + $24,994.40 
Training ($11,000.00) + first monthly subscription fees (1 * $959.40/month) = $24,994.40.

Confidential. Copyright© 2023 Patagonia Health, Inc. 
15100 Weston Parkway, Suite 204, Cary, NC 275131 (919) 238-4780 I Email info@patagoniahealth.com 

Ver 1 - 20231122-10:SBAM 
Page 11 of 15 



A PatagoniaHealth 
http://www.patagoniahealth.com SALES AGREEMENT 

5-Year Price:

Payments 

1st Year 2nd Year 3rd Year 4th Year 5th Year Total 5 Years 

Payments to 
$ 33,629.00 $ 11,973.31 $ 12,452.24 $ 12,950.33 $ 13,468.35 $ 84,473.24 

Patagonia Health 

Confidential. Copyright© 2023 Patagonia Health, Inc. 
15100 Weston Parkway, Suite 204, Cary, NC 275131 (919) 238-4780 I Email info@patagoniahealth.com 

Ver 1 - 20231122-10:SBAM 
Page 12 of 15 



A PatagoniaHealth 
http://www.patagoniahealth.com SALES AGREEMENT 

PAYMENT SCHEDULE OPTIONS: 

OPTION A (Payment Terms): Initial to Accept Option A: 

(a) Upfront Payment (implementation, training and first month's payment): $24,994.40
(Due within 30 days of contract date) 

$959.40 (b) Ongoing Monthly. First 2 months free. Each monthly Payment:

(c) Total First Year Payments ( $24,994.40 + 9 * $959.40 ):

OR 

OPTION B (All Annual Payments, each year, paid in advance): 

(a) Total Year 1 Contract Amount:
(b) Discount on only first year total payment (2%)

$33,629.00 

Initial to Accept Option B: 

$33,629.00 
- $672.58

(c) Total Payment after discount for Year 1: $32,956.42

(Due within 30 days of invoice/contract date) 

OPTIONAL FEATURES 

Confidential. Copyright© 2023 Patagonia Health, Inc. 
15100 Weston Parkway, Suite 204, Cary, NC 275131 (919) 238-4780 I Email info@patagoniahealth.com 

Ver 1 - 20231122-10:SSAM 
Page 13 of 15 







City of Appleton Health Department                                                                                 September 18, 2023 

Software Expressions, Inc.                                                                                                        Page      1 

 

 

 

City of Appleton Health Department 

Electronic Health Record Proposal 

Remote Access 

Software Expressions, Inc. 

September 18, 2023 

 

 

 

 



City of Appleton Health Department                                                                                 September 18, 2023 

Software Expressions, Inc.                                                                                                        Page      2 

Executive Summary 

 This proposal describes the implementation of the electronic health record for the City of Appleton Health 

Department using the remote access option.   Access is through a secure VPN.    

 

 This solution will improve and simplify the current documenting and tracking of public health services 

provided to the community.   It will also improve the billing processes and utilize electronic claim batches for 

submission and electronic remittance advice. 

  

 The software is designed with flexible charting options for case management including maternal and child 

health, infant records, PNCC, TB tests, vision and hearing testing performed at schools, car seat safety,  senior fall 

prevention, and dental fluoride.  The charting templates are user-defined and can easily be created by your staff 

whenever additional services are offered by the health department.   

 

 Provision Software solutions will help organize and assign intakes as public complaints or referrals from 

sources as Police and Fire Departments.  Includes tickler reminders to ensure crucial tasks are performed timely. 

  

 The software Includes a robust scheduling module with custom nurse templates accessible by multiple 

staff at once.  Clinics are user-defined and can be used for vaccines, health checks, educational classes and each 

can have varied timeslots per hour. 

 

 Scan and attach documents to the client’s electronic chart with user-defined image categories.  This 

includes PDF forms, lab results, consent for treatments, HIPAA policy, and other paper documents for easy retrieval 

by all staff through the Proview Module.   

 

  



City of Appleton Health Department                                                                                 September 18, 2023 

Software Expressions, Inc.                                                                                                        Page      3 

Investment Summary:                                                                                                     

1 Client Electronic Health Record 

Demographic, insurance, medications, allergies, contacts, hospitalization, health history and nurse 
notes per client.  Includes letter module with key data inserts, short service record, MS Word 
Encounter Forms, and letter creation (as Administration Records, Consent Forms, TB Tests, Lead 
test results).  Electronic Encounter forms for services performed and tracking with free text block 
for narratives.  Includes CPT and ICD10 code selections when applicable.  Data base charting with 
user-defined questions and valid responses and data analysis by program and date ranges.  
Includes historical look-up for comparisons and reporting of results by date of service with 
spreadsheet export and high-risk assessments.  Staff can attach reports and scanned images to 
client’s chart.   Educational materials for clients are stored and accessed for easy handouts.  
Includes secure internal email with group alerts.   

$15,995.00 

2 Intake/ Referral Tracking Module 

Tracking of calls, referrals and tasks by client and nurse.  Includes attachment of documentation, 
tickler reminders, export to spreadsheets and re-assignment of cases to different nurse.  Provides 
an overall view of all outstanding and closed cases. Ideal for PNCC, AODA, or newborn tracking.  
All incidents are archived when completed and can be viewed or re-opened at any time.  Includes 
PDF printout of incident. 

Included 

3 9 user EHR (Electronic Health Record) licenses  $11,340.00 

4 One time setup and configuration of virtual operating system on cloud server, VPN, creation of 
users and credentials. 

$  2,200.00 

5 One time installation and configuration of the client application per PC or other Microsoft OS 
device.  Instructions will be provided to your I.T. and they can complete the remaining installations 

$135.00/first 
PC 

6 Training – remote and on site.  Includes training with super users to focus on software setup, 
scheduling templates, and user security definitions.  Includes training with smaller groups on 
electronic charting, client creation, generation of reports.  Includes On Line Documentation with 
capabilities to create and store customized documentation.  Training hours do not expire.  Budget 
45 hours. 

$ 6,075.00 

7 Scheduling Module for multiple nurse calendars and locations, waiting room feature to track 
clients ready to be seen, batched encounter forms for services provided as vaccine 
admin/consents, reporting of visit and client counts with spreadsheet export.  Create as many 
separate schedules as desired for flu, dental, COVID-19, Health checks, TB testing, stepping on 
programs for elderly, and other educational services.  Track and control frequent client no shows 
and cancellations.   Staff access is secure and based on each user’s privileges to view or 
schedule at specific clinics. 

$ 1,750.00 

 Total Investment: $37,495.00 

 

 



City of Appleton Health Department                                                                                 September 18, 2023 

Software Expressions, Inc.                                                                                                        Page      4 

Annual Software Investment Summary estimates based on modules selected: 
 

8 Year 1: Annual Software Upgrades and Enhancements to ensure the latest revisions to 
the software.   

$  2,500.00 

9 Year 1: Annual Software support working with the key super-users. $  7,600.00 

10 Year 1: Annual Cloud subscription for 9 Provision Users $  7,500.00 

11 Year 1: Additional Training 20 hours $  2,700.00 

 Year 1: Annual Investment  $20,300.00 

12 Year 2: Annual Software Upgrades and Enhancements to ensure the latest revisions to 
the software  

$ 2,712.50 

13 Year 2:  Annual Software support working with the key super-users. $ 8,237.50 

14 Year 2: Annual Cloud subscription for 9 Provision Users $ 8,137.50 

15 Year 2: Additional Training 15 hours $ 2,197.13 

 Year 2: Annual Investment $21,284.63 

16 Year 3: Annual Software Upgrades and Enhancements to ensure the latest revisions to 
the software 

$ 2,834.56 

17 Year 3: Annual Software Support working with the key super-users $ 8,608.19 

18 Year 3: Annual Cloud subscription for 9 Provision Users $ 8,503.69 

19 Year 3: Additional Training 10 hours $ 1,525.91 

 Year 3: Annual Investment $21,472.35 

20 Year 4: Annual Software Upgrades and Enhancements to ensure the latest revisions to 
the software 

$ 2,962.12 

21 Year 4: Annual Software Support working with key super-users $ 8,995.56 



City of Appleton Health Department                                                                                 September 18, 2023 

Software Expressions, Inc.                                                                                                        Page      5 

22  Year 4: Annual Cloud Subscription for 9 Provision Users $ 8,886.36 

23 Year 4: Additional Training 10 hours $ 1,595.58 

 Year 4 Annual Investment: $22,439.62 

 Total Annual Investment Years 1-4 $85,496.60 

 
 

 

NO RISK GUARANTEE 

 
Software Expressions understands the difficulties involved in selecting and implementing new information 
technologies and software systems.   
 
As a result, if any software module does not meet the needs as specified by City of Appleton Health Department 
after 90 days and Software Expressions has had 30 days to resolve the issues, then Software Expressions will refund 
100% of the money received for that software module. 
 
Software Expressions is committed to implementing software solutions that benefit and meet the needs of City of 
Appleton Health Department. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City of Appleton Health Department                                                                                 September 18, 2023 

Software Expressions, Inc.                                                                                                        Page      6 

Contract & Agreement 

Agreement, dated as of __________________, between: 

 

Software Expressions, Inc. 

8808 W Burleigh Street 

Milwaukee, WI 53222 

and: 

City of Appleton Health Department 

100 N. Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI 54911 

 

Software Expressions, Inc. will provide City of Appleton Health Department with the software and related services 

listed above at the prices set forth, exclusive of applicable taxes, which City of Appleton Health Department agrees 

to pay.  Any modifications to the hardware, services, consulting, training, or additional support will be invoiced on a 

time and material basis. 

 

Products and services will be invoiced as delivered and/or provided.  Payments are due within ten (10) days of such 

invoice. 

  Payment One: Seventy-Five Percent (75%) Due Upon Proposal Acceptance net 10 days 

  Payment Two:  Twenty-Five Percent  (25%)  Due Upon installation per module. 

 

Accepted By: Software Expressions, Inc. 

Signed:  __________________________________________________   

Date: __________________________________________________  

 

Accepted By: City of Appleton Health Department 

Signed:  __________________________________________________   

Date: __________________________________________________  

 

 

 

This offer is valid for thirty (30) days from date of proposal 



 
 

February 2, 2024 

To: City of Appleton Board of Health 
City of Appleton Finance Committee 

From: Charles E. Sepers, Jr., Ph.D., M.P.H., Health Officer/Director 

Subject: Request for Acceptance of Wisconsin BOTS Grant 

I am writing to propose that our health department applies for, and accepts, the Wisconsin Bureau of 

Transportation Safety (BOTS) grant, a valuable opportunity to enhance child passenger safety within our 

community. The key aspects of this grant and its alignment with our public health goals are outlined below: 

1. Grant Overview: The BOTS grant offers $4000 for the federal fiscal year, dedicated to purchasing car seats 

for families in need. This grant is renewable annually, ensuring ongoing support for this critical initiative. 

2. Eligibility Criteria: To qualify for a free car seat, families must meet the federal poverty level guidelines. 

However, it's important to note that all City of Appleton residents requiring assistance with child 

passenger safety will be supported, regardless of income. The poverty guidelines specifically apply to the 

provision of free car seats. 

3. Education and Safety: A pivotal component of this program is the education provided to families on the 

correct use and installation of car seats. This training is conducted by a staff member who is a Certified 

Child Passenger Safety Technician, ensuring that families receive expert guidance. 

4. Evaluation and Feedback: All participating families are required to complete a recipient survey form. This 

process is crucial for assessing the effectiveness of our educational efforts and making necessary 

improvements. 

5. Regional Adoption: Several local health departments in the tri-county area already participate in this grant 

program, demonstrating its feasibility and success in neighboring communities. 

6. Program’s Goal: The primary objective of this initiative is to ensure that all child passengers are in the 

correct car seat, significantly reducing the risk of injury or fatality in the event of a crash. 

In conclusion, the BOTS grant represents a strategic opportunity to bolster our community's health and safety 

infrastructure. By providing essential resources to families in need, we can significantly contribute to reducing child 

injuries and fatalities in vehicular incidents. I strongly recommend that we pursue this important funding and look 

forward to discussing this proposal further. 

Sincerely, 

 

Charles E. Sepers, Jr., Ph.D., M.P.H. 

Health Officer/Director 

Appleton Health Department 



Communicable Disease Control

0 20 40 60 80 100

Gastroenteric

STD

STD ≤ age 18

Latent TB

2023 Q4 Report
Appleton Health Department

There are five Foundational Areas in Public Health, also known

as Public Health Programs. The Appleton Health Department

reports quarterly on quantitative metrics in each program. The

data reported here is compared to the data for the same period

the previous year.

0 50 100 150 200

Establishment Inspections

Price Scanning Inspections

Scanning Errors Found

Complaints

Violations

0 50 100 150 200

Food/Water Borne Illness

Establishment Complaints

Pre-inspections

Re-Inspections

Inspections

Swimming Pool Samples

Environmental Complaints

Rabies Specimens

A continued increase in blood lead levels is likely due to the newly
established blood lead reference value of 3.5 μg/dL over the
previous value of 5.0 μg/dL.

Chronic Disease Control & Injury Prevention

Lead Elevations

2023: 21 Lead
Elevations

2022: 16 Lead
Elevations

Maternal, Child, & Family Health
A reduction in referrals to to Public Health Nursing has
reduced the number of visits and re-visits from 2022.
Public Health Nurse visits and revisits

2023: 91 visits                          2022: 111 visits

Integrated preparedness plan (IPP) development and
emergency management trainings. 
Wisconsin Emergency Management trainings in October:
Practical Application of the Incident Command System and
Mass Fatalities training.  
Staff from each division participated in the APHA Conference in
November, attending sessions ranging from cultural competence
to injury prevention. 

Increased staffing capacity of the Environmental Health division
has led to an increase in routine inspections in all quarters in 2023.
The decreased number of restaurant complaints is likely due to the
increase in overall routine inspections.

2023 2022

2023 2022

2023 2022

Establishment Inspections, Price Scanning Inspections,
Complaints, & Violations

While gastroenteric prevalence was higher in this quarter over the
same period in 2022, year to date prevalence is similar. The trend
of STI infections among youth remains elevated. Similarly, latent
TB infections have risen substantially.

Communicable Disease Prevalence

Emergency Preparedness & Response

Weights & Measures
While establishment inspections are lower in this quarter in 2023
when compared to 2024, this is due to inspection scheduling
changes. YTD 2023 totals are similar to YTD 2022 totals.

Environmental Public Health

Licensing

 20
 12

 87

14
 0 

6
 2

84

 0 
 0 

6 
12
10

28
11
16

148

97

1
1

55

3
6

53

99

148

28

5

31
7

18
13

11

3

Completion  of the Appleton Age Friendly Survey 
AARP Age Friendly Communities Conference.
Coordinated Entry Specialist  role development and training
is providing groundwork for Coordinated Entry network  
development.

Community Health

https://www.appleton.org/


Respiratory Virus Surveillance Report
Week 4, Ending January 27, 2024

Wisconsin Department of Health Services | Division of Public Health |
Bureau of Communicable Diseases | Communicable Diseases Epidemiology Section |

www.dhs.wisconsin.gov/dph/bcd.html | dhsdphbcd@dhs.wi.gov

P-02346

1



Division of Public Health Respiratory Virus Surveillance Report Week 4, 2024

Influenza-like Illness (ILI) Activity

State of Wisconsin Region V of US 
 (WI, MN, IL, MI, OH, IN) United States

ILI: High Levels ILI: Moderate Levels ILI: Below Baseline ILI: Insufficient Data

Weekly Respiratory Virus Data, At-A-Glance

Predominant virus of the week:

Influenza

Week 4, 2024

0Wisconsin

Since September 3

8Nationwide

0

65

Influenza−associated pediatric deaths reported:

For National US influenza surveillance statistics visit: www.cdc.gov/flu/weekly/

2



Division of Public Health Respiratory Virus Surveillance Report Week 4, 2024

Respiratory Virus and Pneumonia-Associated Mortality
Percent of deaths associated with influenza, RSV, COVID-19, or pneumonia by week,
Vital Records

2020 2021 2022 2023

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

Jan Mar Jun Sep Dec Mar May Aug Nov Jan Apr Jul Oct Jan Mar Jun Sep Dec Feb

Respiratory virus and pneumonia associated deaths by most recent 3-week period,
Vital Records

Season
week

Pneumonia
(P)

Influenza
(I)

COVID-19
(C) RSV (R) P, I, C or R Percent

PICR of all
2 80 9 47 6 125 10%
3 93 17 36 5 123 11%
4 51 8 30 5 78 9%

3



Division of Public Health Respiratory Virus Surveillance Report Week 4, 2024

Influenza-Associated Hospitalizations
Influenza-associated hospitalizations by age group, WEDSS
September 3, 2023 to present

19
64 91

256

400

935

0

250

500

750

1000

<1 1−4 5−17 18−49 50−64 65+
Age Group (years)

N
um

be
r 

of
 H

os
pi

ta
liz

at
io

ns

Weekly influenza-associated hospitalizations by influenza season, WEDSS

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

36 38 40 42 44 46 48 50 52 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18 20 22 24 26 28 30 32 34
Influenza season week

In
flu

en
za

−
as

so
ci

at
ed

 h
os

pi
ta

liz
at

io
ns

2019−2020 2020−2021 2021−2022 2022−2023 2023−2024

Influenza Season Through Week 4 Entire Season

2019-2020 898 4002

2020-2021 15 28

2021-2022 380 1021

2022-2023 3,421 3609

2023-2024 1,765 -

These data are preliminary and subject to change as more information is received.

4



Division of Public Health Respiratory Virus Surveillance Report Week 4, 2024

Wisconsin Laboratory Surveillance

Wisconsin positive influenza results and subtypes by PCR, NREVSS

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

0

10

20

30

40

50

09/09 10/07 11/04 12/02 12/30 01/27 02/24 03/23 04/20 05/18 06/15 07/13 08/10
Week ending

N
um

be
r 

of
 p

os
iti

ve
 d

et
ec

tio
ns

%
 P

ositive by P
C

R

A(H1N1) A(H3N2) A (unknown subtype) Influenza B

Cumulative number of positive influenza PCR tests by subtype, NREVSS
September 3, 2023 to present

Measure Influenza
A(H1N1)pdm2009

Influenza
A(H3N2)

Influenza A
Unknown Influenza B Total

Total positive
(n) 593 392 23003 2511 26499

% of total
positive 2% 1% 87% 9% 100%

5



Division of Public Health Respiratory Virus Surveillance Report Week 4, 2024

Wisconsin Laboratory Surveillance for Respiratory Viruses
Percent postivity of respiratory viruses tested by PCR, NREVSS

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

09/09 10/07 11/04 12/02 12/30 01/27 02/24 03/23 04/20 05/18 06/15 07/13 08/10
Week ending

%
 P

os
iti

ve
 b

y 
P

C
R

 
 (

3−
w

ee
k 

m
ov

in
g 

av
er

ag
e)

Influenza
RSV

SARS−CoV−2
hMPV

Rhino−Entero
Parainfluenza

Adenovirus
Seasonal Coronavirus

Number and percent positivity of respiratory viruses tested by PCR, NREVSS
Week 4, Ending on January 27, 2024

Respiratory
virus Tested Positive

(n)
Positive

(%) H3N2 2009 H1N1 Unknown Influenza B

Influenza 9,624 1,828 19% 22 47 1,399 360

Respiratory
virus Tested Positive

(n)
Positive

(%)
Parainfluenza

1
Parainfluenza

2
Parainfluenza

3
Parainfluenza

4

Parainfluenza 688 11 1.6% 6 0 3 2

Respiratory virus Tested Positive (n) Positive (%)

Respiratory Syncytial Virus 6,583 662 10.1%

Adenovirus 689 16 2.3%

Seasonal Coronavirus 607 26 4.3%

HMPV 688 13 1.9%

Rhinovirus/Enterovirus 1,285 132 10.3%

COVID-19 10,736 1,146 10.7%

6



Division of Public Health Respiratory Virus Surveillance Report Week 4, 2024

Respiratory Virus Activity in the Emergency Department (ED)

Percent of ED visits with a diagnosis for a respiratory virus or acute respiratory infection
(ARI), NSSP

0

10

20

Mar 23 May 23 Jul 23 Sep 23 Nov 23 Jan 24
Week ending

W
ee

kl
y 

P
er

ce
nt

 o
f E

D
 V

is
its

SARS−CoV−2 Influenza RSV ARI

Percent of ED visits with a diagnosis for influenza by age group, NSSP

0

2

4

6

Mar 23 May 23 Jul 23 Sep 23 Nov 23 Jan 24
Week ending

W
ee

kl
y 

P
er

ce
nt

 o
f E

D
 V

is
its

Age Group (years) 0−4 5−17 18−64 65+

7



Division of Public Health Respiratory Virus Surveillance Report Week 4, 2024

Percent of ED visits with a diagnosis for SARS-CoV-2 by age group, NSSP

0

2

4

6

Mar 23 May 23 Jul 23 Sep 23 Nov 23 Jan 24
Week ending

W
ee

kl
y 

P
er

ce
nt

 o
f E

D
 V

is
its

Age Group (years) 0−4 5−17 18−64 65+

Percent of ED visits with a diagnosis for RSV by age group, NSSP

0

3

6

9

Mar 23 May 23 Jul 23 Sep 23 Nov 23 Jan 24
Week ending

W
ee

kl
y 

P
er

ce
nt

 o
f E

D
 V

is
its

Age Group (years) 0−4 5−17 18−64 65+

8



Division of Public Health Respiratory Virus Surveillance Report Week 4, 2024

Wisconsin ILI Activity
Three-week average percent of visits for ILI by influenza season, ILINET

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

36 38 40 42 44 46 48 50 52 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18 20 22 24 26 28 30 32 34
Season week

A
ve

ra
ge

 %
 IL

I 
 (

3−
w

ee
k 

m
ov

in
g 

av
er

ag
e)

2019−2020 2020−2021 2021−2022 2022−2023 2023−2024

Average percent of visits for ILI by public health region, ILINET

0%
1%
2%
3%
4%
5%
6%
7%
8%
9%

10%

09/09 10/07 11/04 12/02 12/30 01/27
Week ending

A
ve

ra
ge

 %
 IL

I

Average % ILI Baseline Threshold

Wisconsin

9



Division of Public Health Respiratory Virus Surveillance Report Week 4, 2024

0%
1%
2%
3%
4%
5%
6%
7%
8%
9%

10%

09/09 10/07 11/04 12/02 12/30 01/27
Week ending

A
ve

ra
ge

 %
 IL

I

Average % ILI Baseline Threshold

Northeastern Region

0%
1%
2%
3%
4%
5%
6%
7%
8%
9%

10%

09/09 10/07 11/04 12/02 12/30 01/27
Week ending

A
ve

ra
ge

 %
 IL

I

Average % ILI Baseline Threshold

Northern Region

0%
1%
2%
3%
4%
5%
6%
7%
8%
9%

10%

09/09 10/07 11/04 12/02 12/30 01/27
Week ending

A
ve

ra
ge

 %
 IL

I

Average % ILI Baseline Threshold

Southeastern Region

10



Division of Public Health Respiratory Virus Surveillance Report Week 4, 2024

0%
1%
2%
3%
4%
5%
6%
7%
8%
9%

10%

09/09 10/07 11/04 12/02 12/30 01/27
Week ending

A
ve

ra
ge

 %
 IL

I

Average % ILI Baseline Threshold

Southern Region

0%
1%
2%
3%
4%
5%
6%
7%
8%
9%

10%

09/09 10/07 11/04 12/02 12/30 01/27
Week ending

A
ve

ra
ge

 %
 IL

I

Average % ILI Baseline Threshold

Western Region

11



Division of Public Health Respiratory Virus Surveillance Report Week 4, 2024

Understanding the Data
Surveillance Report Description

Influenza-like Illness
(ILI)

Patients who present to a clinician with a fever >=100 degrees F and either a cough or
sore throat.

Influenza-like Illness
(ILI) Activity

Using baseline (expected value data used for comparision) in each of the public health
regions in Wisconsin (https://www.dhs.wisconsin.gov/lh-depts/counties/index.htm), ILI
below baseline is considered low activity, ILI between baseline and threshold levels is
considered moderate activity and above threshold is considered high activity. (1)

Acute Respiratory
Illness (ARI)

ARI is a broad definition designed to capture all diagnoses related to respiratory illness,
including SARS-CoV-2, influenza, pneumonia, and cough

Predominant virus of
the week

These data are compiled from over 40 laboratories in Wisconsin that perform rt-PCR
testing, and shows the viruses that have the highest percentage of positive tests.(2)

Influenza-Associated
Pediatric Mortality

Deaths among children <18 years old, with influenza as the cause of associated cause of
death. This is a state and nationally reportable condition. (3)

Deaths Due to
Pneumonia,

SARS-CoV-2,
Influenza and RSV

Proportion of deaths due to pneumonia, RSV, influenza, and SARS-CoV-2 are extracted
from Vital Records managed by the Office of Health Informatics through ICD-10 codes
and death certificate text searches. (4)

Respiratory Viruses
by PCR

A molecular laboratory method used to detect nucleic acid (DNA/RNA) in viruses,
including influenza and RSV.

Influenza-Associated
Hospitalizations

Patients hospitalized for >24 hours with a laboratory-identified (by rapid antigen or
rt-PCR tests) influenza.(3)

Emergency
Department Data

These data are from the National Syndromic Surveillance Program or NSSP. Visit
information from almost all EDs in Wisconsin are reported from hospital electronic
medical records to NSSP in near-real-time. Diagnoses used included the CDC Broad
Acute Respiratory DD v1, the CDC COVID-Specific DD v1, CDC Influenza DD v1, and
the CDC Respiratory Syncytial Virus DD v1.(5)

Additional Resources
• The CDC Influenza Homepage (https://www.cdc.gov/flu/)
• The National Respiratory and Enteric Virus Surveillance System (NREVSS) (https://www.cdc.gov/
surveillance/nrevss/index.html)
Data Sources
1. CDC Outpatient Influenza-like Illness Surveillance Network (ILINet)
2. Wisconsin Laboratory Information Network and CDC National Respiratory and Enteric Virus Surveil-
lance System (NREVSS)
3. Wisconsin Electronic Disease Surveillance System (WEDSS)
4. Division of Public Health, Office of Health Informatics, Vital Records
5. National Syndromic Surveillance Program (NSSP) data from ESSENCE (Electronic Surveillance System
for Early Notification of Community Based Epidemics).

12

https://www.cdc.gov/flu/
https://www.cdc.gov/surveillance/nrevss/index.html
https://www.cdc.gov/surveillance/nrevss/index.html


Click on the list to select a
sewershed. Click again to deselect. Appleton

Estimated population served: 72,810

Category:
High

Trajectory:
No alert

Appleton

Ashland

Baraboo

Black River Falls

Brookfield (Fox River)

Clintonville

De Pere

Eau Claire

Fond du Lac

Green Bay

Hartford

Hayward

Hudson

Janesville

Kenosha

La Crosse

Lodi

Madison

Manitowoc

Marinette

Marshfield

Mauston

Menomonie

Merrill

Milwaukee (Jones Island)

Milwaukee (South Shore)

Monroe

Oconomowoc
Oregon

✚

Wastewater concentration of SARS-CoV-2 within the Appleton sewershed

Linear scale
Log scale

A linear scale is more helpful to follow short-term trends over time.
A log scale is more helpful when there are major increases or decreases.

Slide to pick start date
12/1/2022

12/1/22 2/1/23 4/1/23 6/1/23 8/1/23 10/1/23 12/1/23 2/1/24

0

200

400

600

Appleton WWTF

© 2024 Mapbox © OpenStreetMap

Statewide presence of
SARS-CoV-2 in wastewater

SARS-CoV-2 concentration
categories

Very high
High
Moderate
Low
Very low

Sites with a
significant
increase (✚):

1
12/1/22 2/1/23 4/1/23 6/1/23 8/1/23 10/1/23 12/1/23 2/1/24

0

50

100

150

200

Av
er
ag
e 
SA
RS
-C
oV
-2
 c
on
ce
nt
ra
ti
on

(M
G
C/
pe
rs
on
/d
ay
)

Preliminary data

Statewide average SARS-CoV-2 levels in wastewater over time

COVID-19 Wastewater Surveillance in Wisconsin
Total population served: 2,960,577Dashboard Updated: 2/5/2024

Co
nc
en
tr
at
io
n 
(M
G
C/
pe
rs
on
/d
ay
)

Significant increase ✚

Slide to pick start date
12/1/2022



COVID-19 Hospitalizations and Hospital Capacity

12/1/20 6/1/21 12/1/21 6/1/22 12/1/22 6/1/23 12/1/23

0K

1K

2K

COVID Patients Hospitalized and in
the ICU in Wisconsin

Hospital ICU

Wisconsin

COVID-19 Patients Hospitalized

Shrinking

COVID-19 Patients in ICU

No significant change

74.9% in use

Hospital Beds as of 1/27/2024

74.7% in use

ICU Beds as of 1/27/2024

12/1/206/1/21 12/1/21 6/1/22 12/1/22 6/1/23 12/1/23

0%

50%

100%

Hospital Bed and ICU Bed Usage

Updated: 1/27/2024

Hover over visuals and
text to find more
information.

Select a Region
Wisconsin

Two Week Range
2024-01-14 -
2024-01-27

Overall Hospital Capacity in Wisconsin

Trajectory of COVID Patient
Hospitalizations by Region

Median Inp Peak Rate

Median Icu Peak Rate

Median Med Surg Peak Rate
33.1%

47.0%

28.4%

Hospital Peak Capacity as of 1/27/2024

Growing

No significant chan..

Shrinking









Approved Noise Variances 2024

Event Date Time Address Event Name Source of Noise Contact Name Contact Phone
Date Noise 
Variance 
Approved

Friday, April 12, 2024 4:00pm-10:00pm 1025 N Badger Ave Area 509: Fridays in the Yard
Amplified 
Music/Sound Roxanne Adams (920) 410-1405 1/29/2024

Friday, April 19, 2024 4:00pm-10:00pm 1025 N Badger Ave Area 509: Fridays in the Yard
Amplified 
Music/Sound Roxanne Adams (920) 410-1405 1/29/2024

Friday, April 26, 2024 4:00pm-10:00pm 1025 N Badger Ave Area 509: Fridays in the Yard
Amplified 
Music/Sound Roxanne Adams (920) 410-1405 1/29/2024

Friday, May 3, 2024 4:00pm-10:00pm 1025 N Badger Ave Area 509: Fridays in the Yard
Amplified 
Music/Sound Roxanne Adams (920) 410-1405 1/29/2024

Friday, May 10, 2024 4:00pm-10:00pm 1025 N Badger Ave Area 509: Fridays in the Yard
Amplified 
Music/Sound Roxanne Adams (920) 410-1405 1/29/2024

Friday, May 17, 2024 4:00pm-10:00pm 1025 N Badger Ave Area 509: Fridays in the Yard
Amplified 
Music/Sound Roxanne Adams (920) 410-1405 1/29/2024

Saturday, May 18, 2024 3:00pm-10:00pm 1025 N Badger Ave Area 509: Live Music Live Music Roxanne Adams (920) 410-1405 1/29/2024

Friday, May 24, 2024 4:00pm-10:00pm 1025 N Badger Ave Area 509: Fridays in the Yard
Amplified 
Music/Sound Roxanne Adams (920) 410-1405 1/29/2024

Friday, May 31, 2024 4:00pm-10:00pm 1025 N Badger Ave Area 509: Fridays in the Yard
Amplified 
Music/Sound Roxanne Adams (920) 410-1405 1/29/2024

Friday, June 7, 2024 4:00pm-10:00pm 1025 N Badger Ave Area 509: Fridays in the Yard
Amplified 
Music/Sound Roxanne Adams (920) 410-1405 1/29/2024

Friday, June 14, 2024 4:00pm-10:00pm 1025 N Badger Ave Area 509: Fridays in the Yard
Amplified 
Music/Sound Roxanne Adams (920) 410-1405 1/29/2024

Saturday, June 15, 2024 9:00am-12:00pm City Park, 500 E Franklin St
14th Annual Fox Cities Butterfly 
Festival

Amplified 
Music/Sound Jay Stephany (920) 960-5596 1/29/2024

Friday, June 21, 2024 4:00pm-10:00pm 1025 N Badger Ave Area 509: Fridays in the Yard
Amplified 
Music/Sound Roxanne Adams (920) 410-1405 1/29/2024

Saturday, June 22, 2024 4:00pm-10:00pm 1025 N Badger Ave Area 509: Live Music Live Music Roxanne Adams (920) 410-1405 1/29/2024

Saturday, June 22, 2024 12:00pm-10:00pm Jones Park, 301 W Lawrence St Sol Dance Music Festival Live Music Curtis Biese (920) 205-4393 1/29/2024

Friday, June 28, 2024 4:00pm-10:00pm 1025 N Badger Ave Area 509: Fridays in the Yard
Amplified 
Music/Sound Roxanne Adams (920) 410-1405 1/29/2024

Friday, July 5, 2024 4:00pm-10:00pm 1025 N Badger Ave Area 509: Fridays in the Yard
Amplified 
Music/Sound Roxanne Adams (920) 410-1405 1/29/2024

Friday, July 12, 2024 4:00pm-10:00pm 1025 N Badger Ave Area 509: Fridays in the Yard
Amplified 
Music/Sound Roxanne Adams (920) 410-1405 1/29/2024

Saturday, July 13, 2024 4:00pm-10:00pm 1025 N Badger Ave Area 509: Live Music Live Music Roxanne Adams (920) 410-1405 1/29/2024

Friday, July 19, 2024 4:00pm-10:00pm 1025 N Badger Ave Area 509: Fridays in the Yard
Amplified 
Music/Sound Roxanne Adams (920) 410-1405 1/29/2024

Friday, July 26, 2024 4:00pm-10:00pm 1025 N Badger Ave Area 509: Fridays in the Yard
Amplified 
Music/Sound Roxanne Adams (920) 410-1405 1/29/2024

Saturday, July 27, 2024 9:30-5:00pm City Park, 500 E Franklin St Art at the Park Live Music Shawn Thiel (920) 858-0249 1/29/2024

Sunday, July 28, 2024 9:30am-4:00pm City Park, 500 E Franklin St Art at the Park Live Music Shawn Thiel (920) 858-0249 1/29/2024

Friday, August 2, 2024 4:00pm-10:00pm 1025 N Badger Ave Area 509: Fridays in the Yard
Amplified 
Music/Sound Roxanne Adams (920) 410-1405 1/29/2024



Approved Noise Variances 2024

Friday, August 9, 2024 4:00pm-10:00pm 1025 N Badger Ave Area 509: Fridays in the Yard
Amplified 
Music/Sound Roxanne Adams (920) 410-1405 1/29/2024

Friday, August 16, 2024 4:00pm-10:00pm 1025 N Badger Ave Area 509: Fridays in the Yard
Amplified 
Music/Sound Roxanne Adams (920) 410-1405 1/29/2024

Saturday, August 17, 2024 4:00pm-10:00pm 1025 N Badger Ave Area 509: Live Music Live Music Roxanne Adams (920) 410-1405 1/29/2024

Friday, August 23, 2024 4:00pm-10:00pm 1025 N Badger Ave Area 509: Fridays in the Yard
Amplified 
Music/Sound Roxanne Adams (920) 410-1405 1/29/2024

Friday, August 30, 2024 4:00pm-10:00pm 1025 N Badger Ave Area 509: Fridays in the Yard
Amplified 
Music/Sound Roxanne Adams (920) 410-1405 1/29/2024

Friday, September 6, 2024 4:00pm-10:00pm 1025 N Badger Ave Area 509: Fridays in the Yard
Amplified 
Music/Sound Roxanne Adams (920) 410-1405 1/29/2024

Friday, September 13, 2024 4:00pm-10:00pm 1025 N Badger Ave Area 509: Fridays in the Yard
Amplified 
Music/Sound Roxanne Adams (920) 410-1405 1/29/2024

Friday, September 20, 2024 4:00pm-10:00pm 1025 N Badger Ave Area 509: Fridays in the Yard
Amplified 
Music/Sound Roxanne Adams (920) 410-1405 1/29/2024

Saturday, September 21, 2024 1:00pm-4:00pm Pierce Park, 1035 W Prospect Ave International Peace Day
Amplified 
Music/Sound John Polakowski (920) 424-7776 1/29/2024

Wednesday, September 25, 2024 4:00pm-4:40pm Approved Parade Route Appleton West Homecoming
Amplified 
Music/Sound Mark Cross (920) 740-7692 1/29/2024

Friday, September 27, 2024 4:00pm-10:00pm 1025 N Badger Ave Area 509: Fridays in the Yard
Amplified 
Music/Sound Roxanne Adams (920) 410-1405 1/29/2024



Understanding the health needs of the community by conducting
Community Health Assessments and convening community
members to address those needs through the Community Health
Improvement Plan,  are central  to the work of local health
departments.  

Public health jurisdictions have well-defined geographical
boundaries.  This clear delineation often means that the
populations they serve are unique to their jurisdiction.  Different
jurisdictions serve populations with diverse demographics,
including age, ethnicity,  socio-economic status,  and health needs.
This diversity requires tai lored health assessments and
improvement plans,  reducing the chances of duplication.  Health
issues can vary signif icantly from one area to another due to
factors l ike environment,  industry,  socio-economic conditions,  and
cultural  practices.  Jurisdictions focus on local health concerns
specif ic to their population,  which may not be relevant in other
communities.  Since the health challenges and needs are different
in each jurisdiction,  the strategies and plans developed by the
community are also different.  This customization to the local
context and needs naturally reduces duplication.  Although
jurisdictions serve different populations,  they often communicate
and coordinate with neighboring jurisdictions.  This helps in
understanding focus areas in surrounding districts and ensures
that efforts are not duplicated in districts where populations
might overlap.

NEWSLETTER
OF THE APPLETON PUBLIC HEALTH DEPARTMENT

01.2024
PUBLIC HEALTH

10 ESSENTIAL
PUBLIC HEALTH
SERVICES

Essential  Public
Health Service #1:
Assess and monitor
population health
status,  factors that
influence health,  and
community needs and
assets.

Each month, the
Appleton Health
Department
Newsletter features
stories about how we
are achieving each of
the 10 Essential  Public
Health Services.  This
month, we focus on:

APPLETON COMMUNITY HEALTH ASSESSMENT
RELEASES THIS SPRING

IN THIS ISSUE:
Appleton Community Health Assessment

Community Partner:
Appleton CHA/CHIP Steering Comittee

Meet the Steering Committee

Facil itate equitable community wellbeing
through education,  health promotion, and
response to public health needs.  MISSION:

VISION: Health for al l ,  together.

https://www.cdc.gov/publichealthgateway/publichealthservices/essentialhealthservices.html
https://www.cdc.gov/publichealthgateway/publichealthservices/essentialhealthservices.html
https://www.cdc.gov/publichealthgateway/publichealthservices/essentialhealthservices.html


RESOURCES

APPLETON COMMUNITY HEALTH IMPROVEMENT
PLAN STEERING COMMITTEE

COMMUNITY PARTNERS MEET
THE STEERING
COMMITTEE
MEMBERS

BOARD OF HEALTH
CALENDAR

CDC-10 Essential  Public
Health Services -Full

Breanna Mekuly (Organizer)
Community Health Supervisor
Appleton Health Department

Beth Clay
Executive Director of
NEW Mental Health Connection

Dr.  Charles Sepers
Health Officer
Appleton Health Department

Dr.  Kenny E.  Yarbrough
Vice President
Lawrence I .D.E.A.S.

Jena McNiel
Public Health Nurse
Appleton Health Department

Kayla McNamara
Senior Director of Targeted
Support Services
Boys & Girls Club Fox Valley

Laura Jackson
Executive Director,  Student
Services
Appleton Area School District

Megan Zimmerman
Outreach Program Director
NAMI Fox Valley

Sonja Jensen
Deputy Director & Nursing
Supervisor
Appleton Health Department

Wendy Krueger
Vice President,  Community
Outreach & Development at
United Way Fox Cities

The Appleton Health Department recognizes that a “one-size-f its-
al l”  series of questions cannot capture the health needs of a
community,  so a Steering Committee has been formed. The
Steering Committee has come together to guide and oversee the
development and implementation of Appleton’s CHA and to
coordinate with the Tri-Country Community Health Improvement
Coalit ion to build the Community Health Improvement Plan (CHIP)
informed by the CHA results .

Health priorit ies can vary signif icantly by jurisdiction due to
factors including environment,  industry,  socio-economic
conditions,  and cultural  practices.  It  is  essential  to embed a
diverse group of steering committee members including
representation from public health,  cultural  groups,  community
organizations,  and the education sector to ensure a broad range
of perspectives and expertise.  

Committee members collaborate to make sure data collection
content and methods encompass as many Appleton residents as
possible.  Steering Committee members are involved in setting
priorit ies,  developing strategies,  and outl ining action plans
related to the work.  They also play a role in mobil izing community
resources and partnerships to support data collection and
implementation of the CHIP. We are grateful to our Steering
Committee members for their committee,  community expertise,
and advocacy for Appleton residents.  

https://www.appleton.org/
https://www.facebook.com/appletonhealthdepartment/
https://www.appleton.org/residents/health
https://www.appleton.org/residents/health/contact-us
https://www.linkedin.com/company/appleton-health-department?original_referer=
https://www.instagram.com/appletonhealthdept/
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx
https://phnci.org/uploads/resource-files/EPHS-English.pdf
https://phnci.org/uploads/resource-files/EPHS-English.pdf


Fif ty volunteers f rom 25 di f ferent organizat ions gathered at  the Fox Cit ies
Salvat ion Army on the evening of  January 24th to receive instruct ions and
suppl ies for  the Point  in Time Count (PIT Count) .  The PIT count refers to
the coordinated ef for t  to count and survey indiv iduals exper iencing
homelessness within a speci f ic  geographic area. Appleton’s PIT Count
occurs each year in both January and July and is serves as a “snapshot”
of  what our community ’s homeless needs are r ight  now. At  11pm
volunteers headed out on foot and by vehic le to search for and complete
a short  survey with people across the Fox Cit ies exper iencing
homelessness. 

Between 1am and 3am, teams of  volunteers f i l tered back into the
Salvat ion Army gym to share their  conversat ions and survey data
col lected from persons found l iv ing in uninhabi table spaces. In total ,
th i r ty-seven (37) indiv iduals,  including two chi ldren, shared their  current
and histor ical  exper iences of  l iv ing in uninhabi table spaces such as
streets,  cars,  or  abandon bui ld ings across the ci t ies surveyed (Appleton,
Fox Crossing, Grand Chute,  Harr ison, Li t t le Chute,  Menasha, Neenah).
Immediate shel ter ,  personal  care k i ts,  food, and resources were of fered
to each person volunteers contacted.

Appleton’s PIT Count data is reported to Wisconsin Balance of  State
Cont inuum of Care (WIBOSCOC), U.S. Department of  Housing & Urban
Development,  and in the Annual  Homelessness Assessment Report
(AHAR) that is provided to the U.S. Congress. Data col lected al lows for
cont inued funding for homelessness prevent ion programs in our
communit ies.

NEWSLETTER
OF THE APPLETON PUBLIC HEALTH DEPARTMENT

02.2024
PUBLIC HEALTH

10 ESSENTIAL
PUBLIC
HEALTH
SERVICES

Essent ia l  Publ ic Heal th
Service #1: Assess and
monitor populat ion
heal th status,  factors
that inf luence heal th,
and community needs
and assets.

Each month,  the Appleton
Health Department
Newslet ter  features
stor ies about how we are
achieving each of  the 10
Essent ia l  Publ ic Heal th
Services.  This month,  we
focus on:

APPLETON VOLUNTEERS GATHER
FOR THE POINT IN TIME COUNT

IN THIS ISSUE:
Point in Time Count

Community Partner:
Fox Cit ies Salvation Army

Meet Liz

Faci l i tate equi table community wel lbeing
through educat ion,  heal th promot ion, and
response to publ ic heal th needs. 

MISSION:
VISION: Health for  a l l ,  together.

https://www.cdc.gov/publichealthgateway/publichealthservices/essentialhealthservices.html
https://www.cdc.gov/publichealthgateway/publichealthservices/essentialhealthservices.html
https://www.cdc.gov/publichealthgateway/publichealthservices/essentialhealthservices.html
https://www.cdc.gov/publichealthgateway/publichealthservices/essentialhealthservices.html


The Fox Cities Salvation Army is a faith-based organization which
addresses the needs of people in Appleton and surrounding communities
through a compilation of programs. The Fox Cities branch of the Salvation
Army has been a pillar in the network of community service organizations in
Appleton since 1917. Local programs offered include the daily Noon Meal
Program, Emergency Food Pantry, Housing Services, Pathway of Hope,
Celebrate Recovery, Children’s Learning Center, and Christmas Assistance
Program. 

Pa Yiar Khang, MPH
Board of  Director wi th HMong
American Partnership of  the Fox
Val ley 

Correction: January 2024 Appleton
Health Department Newsletter
Community Heal th Steer ing
Commit tee Members- Omission error

Liz Croley hi t  the ground
running in the newly created
role of  Coordinated Entry
Special ist  in August 2023.Her
behavioral  educat ion
background and resource
navigat ion for AASD fami l ies
lead Liz into advocacy for
people facing homelessness. 

Liz hopes to educate Appleton
residents,  business owners,  and
organizat ions about the
prevalence of  homelessness
and help the community push
past fears and stereotypes TV
and social  media spread about
homelessness. “Any stereotype,
you can get r id of  i t ! ”   
Coordinated Entry services are
near at  hand. Cal l ,  text ,  emai l ,
or  v is i t  the websi te ( lef t )  for
housing resources.

When is Liz is not at  work she
unwinds with her wi fe Gabby
and their  two boys Tuk and
Mack, doing puzzles,  watching
tv and movies,  t ravel ing,  and
cooking.RESOURCES

FOX CITIES SALVATION ARMY
COMMUNITY PARTNERS MEET LIZ

BOARD OF
HEALTH
CALENDAR

CDC-10 Essent ia l  Publ ic
Health Services -Ful l

Fox Cit ies Salvat ion Army

Contact 
Coordinated Entry
CALL: 920-832-6460
TEXT: 920-427-2769
coa.coordinatedentry@
gmai l .com

The City of Appleton serves as the
collaborative applicant and lead agency for
the administration of the four (4) Continuum
of Care/Supportive Housing grants in
community partnership with ADVOCAP, Fox
Cities Salvation Army, Harbor House, and
Pillars, Inc. 

https://www.appleton.org/
https://www.facebook.com/appletonhealthdepartment/
https://www.appleton.org/residents/health
https://www.appleton.org/residents/health/contact-us
https://www.linkedin.com/company/appleton-health-department?original_referer=
https://www.instagram.com/appletonhealthdept/
https://flow.page/coordinatedentrycityofappleton#fid=wclCLoNux&c=fa96cf97-3c45-49e4-a589-21482fa66846-SSE:1704747761
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx
https://phnci.org/uploads/resource-files/EPHS-English.pdf
https://phnci.org/uploads/resource-files/EPHS-English.pdf
https://centralusa.salvationarmy.org/foxcities/home/#whatwedo
mailto:coa.coordinatedentry@gmail.com
mailto:coa.coordinatedentry@gmail.com
mailto:coa.coordinatedentry@gmail.com
mailto:coa.coordinatedentry@gmail.com
mailto:coa.coordinatedentry@gmail.com
mailto:coa.coordinatedentry@gmail.com
mailto:coa.coordinatedentry@gmail.com

	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_12.13.23BoardOfHealthMeetingMinutes
	0002_1_2024.02_EHRVendorRecommendation
	2024.02_EHRMemo_a.pdf
	City of Appleton Formal Proposal CHAMP Sept 2023.pdf
	Patagonia Health quote for City of Appleton Health Department 11272023 corrected.pdf
	City of Appleton Remote Proposal Software Expressions20230918.pdf

	0003_1_2024.02_BOTSMemo_a
	0005_1_Q4 2023 Quarterly Report_0
	0006_1_Feb2024_RespiratoryVirusSurveillanceAndWasteWaterReport
	01.27.24_RespiratoryVirusSurveillanceReport.pdf
	Influenza-like Illness (ILI) Activity
	Weekly Respiratory Virus Data, At-A-Glance
	Predominant virus of the week:

	Respiratory Virus and Pneumonia-Associated Mortality
	Influenza-Associated Hospitalizations
	Wisconsin Laboratory Surveillance
	Wisconsin Laboratory Surveillance for Respiratory Viruses
	Respiratory Virus Activity in the Emergency Department (ED)
	Wisconsin ILI Activity
	Understanding the Data
	Surveillance Report Description


	GetFileAttachment1.pdf
	GetFileAttachment.pdf

	0007_1_01.15.24_DangerousAnimalDeclaration_Tony
	0008_1_2024_NewApprovedNoiseVariances_FebBoH
	2024

	0009_1_January 2024 Newsletter_0
	0009_2_February 2024 Newsletter_0



